UNITED

NATIONS C C P R

. Di str.
Inter.ngnonal covenant GENERAL
on civil and

C . CCPR/ C/ SR. 1591
political rights 21 July 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

HUMAN RI GHTS COVWM TTEE
Si xti eth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1591st MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 16 July 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M's. CHANET
| at er: Ms. MEDI NA QUI ROGA

| ater: M's. CHANET

CONTENTS
STATEMENT BY THE OFFI CER- I N- CHARGE, HI GH COVM SSI ONER/ CENTRE FOR HUMAN RI GHTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (conti nued)

Initial report of Slovakia (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97-17337 (E)



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1591
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m

STATEMENT BY THE OFFI CER- I N- CHARGE, HI GH COVM SSI ONER/ CENTRE FOR HUMAN RI GHTS

1. M. ZACKLIN (O ficer-in-Charge, Hi gh Conm ssioner/Centre for Human

Ri ghts), wel com ng menbers of the Committee to Geneva, noted that both the
Chai rman and Vi ce-Chairman of the Conmittee were wonen. The inportant role

pl ayed by wonen in the defence of human rights had been acknow edged by the
Secretary-Ceneral in appointing Ms. Robinson, President of Ireland, to the
post of Hi gh Conm ssioner for Human Ri ghts; and he was sure that that

appoi ntnent woul d represent a nilestone in the history of international human
rights law. The experience gained by the Committee since its first session
nmore than 20 years earlier would no doubt be of the greatest value to the new
Hi gh Commi ssioner: recent devel opnents on the international scene had nade it
essential to strengthen nechanisns for nmonitoring obligations contracted under
human rights treaties, and under the two Covenants in particular

2. The kind of protection afforded by such nonitoring was, by its very
nature, nore |legal than political, and was the result of dial ogue between

i ndependent bodi es such as the Cormittee and States parties concerned to nmake
progress in that area. It was also systematic, in that it dealt with

i mpl enmentation of all human rights in all countries of the world. The
Committee's action had in nmany cases succeeded better than any other procedure
in making progress in ensuring the enjoynment of human rights and inproving
speci fic human rights situations. It was for that reason that its

del i berations, and nore specifically its concludi ng observations and
recomendati ons, would be an undi sputed reference-point for the High

Commi ssioner, and that inplenentation of those observations and
recommendati ons woul d be one of her principal objectives.

3. Qutlining devel opnents in the work of other human rights treaty bodies
since the Conmittee' s previous session, he said that the Commi ttee agai nst
Torture had considered, inter alia, the special report it had asked Israel to
submt concerning the decision taken by the Suprenme Court to authorize the use
of noderate and reasonabl e physical and psychol ogi cal pressure during

i nterrogations of certain suspects. Wile the Cormittee had recogni zed the
terrible dilemua faced by Israel in dealing with the scourge of terrorism it
had pointed out that a State party to the Convention against Torture could not
i nvoke exceptional circunstances as a justification of methods prohibited
under that Convention. The Comrittee had al so recomended, inter alia, that
the nmethods used by the Israeli security forces should be discontinued

i mredi ately, and had requested the State party to respond to its
recommendati ons before 1 Septenber 1997. It should be noted that it was the
first tinme such reports had been requested of a State party, in pursuance of a
procedure initiated by the Human Rights Conmittee five years earlier

4, A growi ng nunber of persons awaiting trial were now submtting

conmuni cati ons under article 22 of the Convention against Torture, and thus
the Committee's body of jurisprudence in that regard was growi ng ever | arger
He woul d encourage nenbers to take account of those devel oprments in their work
inrelation to the Optional Protocol, in particular when questions concerning
article 7 of the Covenant cane to be discussed.



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1591
page 3

5. The Committee on Econonmic, Social and Cultural Rights had taken note of
the acceptance by the Dom nican Republic of its proposal that two of its
menbers should visit the country in connection with the inplenentation of
article 11, paragraph 1, of the Covenant relating to the right to housing.

That m ssion was to take place in Septenber 1997. 1In addition, the Conmttee
had submitted a nunber of recommendations to the Econom ¢ and Soci al Counci
for approval, including a recommendati on that an extraordi nary session shoul d

be held in 1998

6. The Committee on the Rights of the Child had noted with interest the
progress made in establishing the programme of action intended to strengthen
support for the Conmittee. It had also decided to devote one day of its

session, 6 October 1997, to a general discussion on the subject of disabled
chi | dren.

7. In the course of the com ng nonths the Chairmen of the treaty bodies
were to neet in Geneva to identify and evaluate the neasures which stil

needed to be taken in order to inprove coordination between the various
mechani sns for nmonitoring inplenentation of treaties. They would no doubt

t ake account of the conclusions of the seminars held in Canbridge, Potsdam and
Toronto, to which a nunber of nenbers of the Committee had contri buted.

8. In conclusion, he congratulated the Cormittee on the high quality of its
wor k, and expressed the hope that its sixtieth session would be a success.

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (agenda item 4) (continued)

Initial report of Slovakia (continued) (CCPR/ C/81/Add.9)

9. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the del egati on of
Sl ovakia took places at the Conmittee table.

10. The CHAIRMAN invited the Slovakian del egation to respond to questions
rai sed by menmbers the previous day in connection with part | of the list of
i ssues (CCPR/ C/ 60/ Q SLO 4).

11. M. JEZOVI CA (Sl ovaki a) said several questions raised had concerned
measures to combat discrimnation agai nst wonen. The Government had set up a
coordi nation comm ttee for questions concerning wonmen, which included
representatives of governnmental and non-governnental institutions, churches,
sel f-governi ng bodies and trade unions. Its main tasks were to coordinate
policies, to nake proposals to the Governnment, and to draw up a nationa
action plan for inproving the situation of wonen. The Governnent had al so
proposed that a gender centre should be opened in Bratislava under

United Nations auspices, and that proposal had nmet with a favourabl e response.
The centre was to be an i ndependent body which would be able to listen to a
wi de range of views on gender issues and work to enhance the situation of
worren t hroughout the country.

12. Ms. Evatt and Ms. Medina Quiroga had asked what nechani sns exi sted to
protect the rights of wonmen in the workplace. In the case of a |abour dispute
the matter woul d be decided by the ordinary courts, but where rights protected



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1591
page 4

under the Constitution were involved a conplaint could be made to the
Constitutional Court. |If that Court found that the rights concerned had been
vi ol ated, the conpl ai nant would be entitled to conmpensation, which would be
deci ded by the normal judicial process. However, one of the problens in
maki ng such conplaints was that the discrimnation had to be proved. So far
no applications had been | odged with the Constitutional Court on that issue.
On the question of how women victins of crime were protected, he said that the
police normally set up special teans of wonen investigators to deal with such
crinmes, so as to mnimze the psychological trauma suffered by the victins.

13. M. Bhagwati had asked whether there was any i ndependent comm ssion in
Sl ovakia to decide on human rights questions. Although no such comr ssion
exi sted, a national institution, the Slovak National Centre for Human Ri ghts,
had been set up to pronote human rights.

14. In reply to the question from M. Buergenthal as to the nunber of Romas
wi thout citizenship in Slovakia, he said that no statistics were avail abl e.

It mght be of interest to the Committee to |earn, however, that after the
Czechosl ovak Federal Republic had ceased to exist, a nunber of Roma had stayed
on in the Czech Republic and had applied unsuccessfully for citizenship

Should a Roma in simlar circunmstances apply for Slovak citizenship, the

M nister of the Interior would be flexible and would not insist that the
normal requirements should be net. In 1994, Slovak citizenship had been
granted to 19,450 persons, in 1995 to 1,300 persons and in 1996 to

500 persons. O all the applications nade only one had been rejected.

15. In response to M. Ando's question whether foreign-Ianguage broadcasts
were permitted in Slovakia, he said that no restrictions applied, except that
films intended for children of under 12 years of age must be dubbed. 1In the
satellite era, television programmes in all |anguages were freely accessible.

16. M s. KRASNOHORSKA (Sl ovaki a) responding to the question raised by
Ms. Medina Quiroga, said there was no open discrimnation agai nst wonen in
the culture of Slovakia, as was apparent fromthe conposition of its

del egation to the Conmttee. Under the Sl ovak education system gender

in no way predeterm ned the choice of profession: thus, in 1994, out of

a total of 1,072 judges 560, or 52 per cent, had been women, and out

of 562 procurators 233, or 41.5 per cent, had been wonen.

17. M . PROCHACKA (Sl ovakia) said a nunber of questions had concerned the
protection of persons belonging to national minorities. Resolution 310 of

30 April 1996 provided for nmeasures to protect the Roma agai nst discrimnation
and violence. 1In that area, the Government worked in cooperation with (NGOs)
such as the Ofice for the Legal Protection of Ethnic Mnorities, whose role
was to nonitor violations of the rights of the Roma and give them | ega
protection. The Rona enjoyed the sane access to procedures for | odging
conplaints as other citizens.

18. M. Yal den had asked for figures on the proportion of persons bel onging
to mnorities enployed in public adm nistration: the Mnistry of the Interior
had estimated that in 1991 sone 9.5 per cent of all enployees in district

adm ni strations were Hungari ans. However, as he had already stated,



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1591
page 5

statistics on enployees in public admnistration and in other sectors were not
di saggregated on the basis of ethnic, religious or |inguistic characteristics
since Slovakia would consider that to be discrimnatory.

19. Replying to a further question from M. Yalden, he said that
certificates issued by schools attended by pupils fromnational mnorities
were exclusively in the Slovak | anguage because it was required by |aw that
that | anguage be used for all official docunents. Certain Menbers of
Parl i ament of Hungarian nationality had filed a conplaint against the Mnistry
of Education on that issue in the Constitutional Court, but no decision had
yet been reached.

20. On the question of |iaison between police and the Roma minority in areas
where the latter were concentrated, he said that under Act No. 564/91 specia
police assistants had been appointed, with responsibility for cooperating with
the Roma in resolving negative social phenonena. As to bilingual education

he said that a nunber of sem nars had recently been organi zed by the Mnistry
of Education to discuss the nerits of nonolingual as against bilingua

teaching. |In addition, a Council of Europe sem nar on bilingual education was
to be held in Slovakia |ater that year, and representatives of nationa
mnorities were to participate. |In answer to a further question, he said that

chil dren who spoke the mgjority | anguage did not learn mnority |anguages.

21. Lord Colville had asked what were the functions of governnent
representatives in relation to solving the problens of persons in need of
speci al assistance. Their main tasks were to coordinate the activities of

i ndi vidual mnistries, to organi ze nmeetings of concerned bodi es and
institutions, and to prrepare conclusions and reconmendati ons. Those
recommendati ons covered, for instance, the allocation of State funds to solve
the social and housing problenms of those in need of special assistance, and
pl ans to solve problens affecting the Ronma as a result of current

soci 0- econom ¢ conditions.

22. In response to a question from M. Scheinin, he said that the Act on the
St at e Language of the Slovak Republic, adopted in 1995, was intended to define
the status of the Slovak |anguage in public life and to create a solid |ega
framework for its use, with a viewto ensuring the snmooth functioning of both
central and |ocal adm nistrations. Penalties for infringement of that Act
could be inposed only on | egal persons, and nmust be preceded by a warning, but
as far as he was aware no such penalty had yet been inposed. |n conclusion

he pointed out that there were in fact not one but nine national mnorities in
Sl ovaki a.

23. M. GREXA (Slovakia), inreply to a question fromMs. Evatt, said that
monitoring of information services was required by |law and carried out by
bodi es appointed by Parlianent. |If an individual considered that his rights
had been violated by such nonitoring, he was entitled to | odge a conpl ai nt
with any branch of the public admi nistration. The right of detainees to

medi cal assistance in case of need was guaranteed by |l aw at every stage of
detention. Concerning the case of the young man killed by skinheads in

1995, he said that on 12 February 1997 the court had sentenced the m nor



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1591
page 6

primarily responsible to seven and a half years' inprisonnment and two others
to 8 months' and 27 nonths' inprisonment respectively; 13 others had been

gi ven suspended sentences. The prosecutor had appeal ed, and the case was to
be reconsi dered by the Suprene Court.

24. Ref erence had been nade by M. Bhagwati to a United States State

Depart ment docunent asserting that people in Slovakia were conplaining of an
at nrosphere of intimdation. It was very difficult to respond to such an
assertion, since in every country there were persons who consi dered that they
were being intimdated by the authorities. The case of an ex-policeman who
had been killed when his car had expl oded had unfortunately not yet been
solved. That, too, was the kind of incident, which occasionally occurred in
ot her countries.

25. Replying to M. Scheinin, he said that the rights of accused persons and
detainees in the armed forces were well regulated: when a person was arrested
by the mlitary police, the Code of Criminal Procedure applied in the same way
as in the civilian sector. Wen mlitary personnel committed offences,
mlitary rules applied; those rules took account of the specific mlitary
factors but guaranteed equality of treatnent.

26. In reply to a question concerning the stage at which an arrested person
had the right to be assisted by defence counsel, he said that under the Code
of Crimnal Procedure the arrested person nmust be infornmed i nmediately of the
reasons for his arrest and had the right inmediately to choose his defence
counsel. In other words, the defence counsel could act fromthe nonment of the
arrest or as soon as he had been contacted thereafter

27. Replying to Ms. Medina Qiroga, he said that the Penal Code did not
define “a particularly dangerous crine”, but stated in article 3 (4) that the
danger posed by a crimnal act was deternmined mainly by the value of the

obj ect protected, the manner in which the of fence had been conmitted, the
consequences of the offence, the circunmstances in which it had been comitted
and the individual who had committed it, especially his notivation

28. In reply to another of her questions, he said that the |l egal order in
the Sl ovak Republic nade no distinction between those injured by defamation
There was a general offence of defamation which affected everyone, and there
were specific provisions that protected State agents. Replying to a further
guestion, he explained that article 70 of the Code of Crim nal Procedure
stated that both the relatives and the | awyer of an arrested person nust be
i nformed of his arrest without delay.

29. M. JEZOVI CA (Sl ovakia), replying to a question from M. Kretzner, said
that all nine nenbers of the Slovak Republic's Council for Radio and
Tel evi si on Broadcasting were el ected by the National Council but none was a
menber of any particular party or novenent. Six nmenbers were nominated by the
governing coalition and three by the opposition parties.

30. M . BUERGENTHAL said he had had no reply to his questions concerning any
educational neasures the Governnent night have taken to pronote ethnic
tol erance through school curricula and the State-controlled nmedia. 1In




CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1591
page 7

particul ar, had any neasures been taken to ensure that school textbooks did
not contain ethnic stereotypes, especially anti-Roma and anti-Senmtic
statenents?

31. Ms. KRASNOHORSKA (Sl ovakia) said there was a docunent which provided
detailed informati on on the subject; she would send it to Commttee nenbers
upon her return to Brati sl ava.

32. M. KRETZMER said he had asked about the term nation of the autononous
status of ethnic Hungarian and Roma theatre groups.

33. M s. KRASNOHORSKA (Sl ovakia) said that that information too would be
suppl i ed by the del egation shortly.

34. M. ANDO sai d questions had been asked regardi ng the mandatory provision
of defence counsel for arrested persons and detai nees, specifically with
respect to who paid for the defence counsel at the investigation stage, and
whet her the State paid only at the trial stage.

35. M. GREXA (Slovakia) said that mandatory defence was provided for under
the law fromthe beginning of an investigation; it was provided w thout charge
to the detainee and paid for by the State.

36. M. PRADO VALLEJO said he had asked the general question whether any
project or progranme existed to review domestic enactnments in order to bring
theminto conformity with the norns and principles laid down in the Covenant.

37. Ms. MEDINA QU ROGA said her question, and that of other nenbers,
regarding the third sentence of paragraph 49 of the report (CCPR/ C/ 81/ Add. 9)
had been why | egal aid was conditional if everyone had the right to it.

38. M. JEZOVICA (Slovakia) said that the | egal system of the

Sl ovak Republic was subject to change and woul d foll ow devel oprnents in
international law. |If the Commttee could point to any specific issues
requiring i mmediate attention, his delegation would be pleased to comunicate
themto the National Council.

39. M. GREXA (Slovakia), replying to the point raised by

M's. Medina Quiroga, said that fromthe outset it should be stressed that the
ri ght of everyone who was prosecuted, accused or placed in detention to have a
def ence counsel was guaranteed; it was absolutely inpossible to be deprived of
that right. The problem possibly lay with the institution of mandatory
defence. \What happened in the vast ngjority of cases was that the right to
have a defence counsel, was exercised in such a way that if the accused person
or detainee did not choose or did not wish to choose a defence counsel, the
State was obliged to appoint one ex officio. However, when someone who had
commtted a mnor offence was being prosecuted for it while remaining free and
had taken no action to choose a defence counsel, the State was not obliged to
appoi nt one.

40. Ms. Medina Quiroga took the Chair.




CCPR/ C/ SR. 1591
page 8

41. M . BHAGMTI sought to clarify the question by asking whether it was in
all kinds of cases that |egal aid nust be provided by the State or only in
certain kinds of cases. If so, in which cases?

42. M. GREXA (Slovakia) said that once court proceedi ngs had begun, a
def ence counsel was nmandatory in all cases; it was inpossible for someone
appearing before a court not to have a |lawer. The question of mandatory
defence concerned only the pre-trial stage; once a case had cone before a
court defence was al ways assured.

43. The CHAIRMAN invited the Slovak del egation to answer the questions
contained in part Il of the list of issues (CCPR/ C/60/Q SLO 4).

44, M. JEZOVICA (Slovakia), replying to question 13, said article 11 of his
country's Constitution stated that international agreements concerning human
rights which had been ratified by Slovakia and pronul gated had precedence over
donmestic | aw on condition that they provided nore extensive rights and
freedons. The Constitution also reflected that precedence in its section
relating to the conpetence of the Constitutional Court. The Covenant

t heref ore had precedence where the donestic legal order limted the rights it
guaranteed. Wen the Constitution had been drawn up in 1992, due regard had
been taken of the Covenant's provisions but its wording probably reflected
nmore cl osely the wordi ng of the European Convention for the Protection of
Human Ri ghts and Fundanental Freedonms. He referred to two cases which had
been dealt with by the Constitutional Court and in which the Covenant had been
directly invoked by the party and by the Court. The General Comments of the
Committee had been useful in helping the Constitutional Court to define the
terms used in the Covenant and to draft its decisions in accordance with its
provi si ons.

45. Replying to question 14, he said that before its departure for Geneva
hi s del egation had infornmed the Slovak nmedia regarding its initial report, the
Covenant and the Optional Protocols. The Covenant was published in the

Col I ection of Laws, which contained all docunents with |egal effect, including
i nternational agreenents to which Slovakia was a party; the Collection of Laws
was a public docunent which was readily accessible and on the shelves of nost
public libraries. Specific neasures regarding the dissem nation of
information on the rights recognized in the Covenant were listed in a book

whi ch woul d be sent to the Conmittee; it was published in two volunes by the
M nistry of Culture and contai ned basic human rights instrunents, including
the Covenant. It was widely distributed in the Slovak and Hungari an

| anguages. The National Council of the Slovak Republic had also initiated
publication of the texts of human rights docunents acconpani ed by scholarly
comentaries and opinions. An inportant role in the dissem nation of
informati on on the rights guaranteed by the Covenant was played by the

Nati onal Centre for Human Ri ghts, which organized training courses, workshops
and sem nars on the subject, and various NGCs.

46. M. GREXA (Slovakia), replying to question 15, said that the authorities
in his country were convinced that the nediation nechani smwas an inmportant
tool in the protection of human rights and fundanental freedons, and that the
institution of an Orbudsman was such a tool. The authorities were aware of a
general trend in Europe and el sewhere towards establishing public protection



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1591
page 9

of human rights, and planned to create an Orbudsman's Office. The decision to
do so had formed part of a series of legislative and institutional neasures to
i nprove control within the State adm nistration, and the National Council had
i ntended that the Orbudsman woul d be an i ndependent authority nonitoring
conpliance by the State adm nistration with human rights and freedons and
settling petitions and conplaints fromcitizens. The draft |aw had been
prepared in accordance with that decision, but it had gradually beconme clear

t hat other concepts should also be considered. The early experience gai ned by
the O fice of the Agent of the Slovak Republic at the European Commi ssion for
Human Ri ghts and the European Court of Human Ri ghts had been that conplaints
were usual ly about delays in proceedings. There were therefore arguments for
gi ving an Orbudsman authority not only for the sphere of State adm nistration
but also for the judicial sphere, and the Slovak authorities were considering
what franmework woul d best suit Slovak requirenments and conditions.

47. M. JEZOVI CA (Sl ovakia), referring to question 16, said that article 23
of the Constitution guaranteed freedom of novenent, including the right of
anyone lawfully on Slovak territory to | eave and return to it, and deened any
forced departure or extradition illegal. The enhancenent of |egal provisions
to extend such rights had been under way since 1989. Act No. 219/91, relating
to travel docunentation, stated that citizens could travel abroad, with valid
docunent ati on, the actual requirenents depending on reciprocal arrangenents.
In some circunstances, for exanple, the identity document need not be a
passport. Conditions for refusing passport applications were governed by that
Act; any refusal nust be based on reasons such as financial default or
crimnal proceedings. Any person over 15 years of age could apply for a
passport; applications for younger persons were submitted by a |l ega
representative. Travel docunents confiscated for any reason were returned to
the issuing office, which had 15 days in which to decide whether there was a
ri ght of appeal; such decisions could be subject to review by the courts.
There were no visa requirenents in respect of nobst European countries, as a
result of agreenents concluded. For nationals subject to such requirenents,
requests could be nmade at a Slovak diplomatic mission or consulate. Visas
could be revoked in cases of crimnal acts, illegal entry, lack of financia
means of support, violation of narcotics regulations and risk to State
security, public order, health or the rights of others; but no one could be
deported to a country where he or she would be in danger on grounds such as
racial origin, political opinions or religious belief, or where a crine
commtted by that person was puni shable by death. Decisions to deport were
taken by the police, but could be appeal ed against to the Mnistry of the
Interior; it was also possible to appeal to the Supreme Court for review of a
m ni sterial decision.

48. In reply to question 17, he said that Act No. 283/95 set forth the
condi tions governing application for refugee status. Applications could be
written or oral, and submitted at a border post or police station within

24 hours of arrival; they were sent to the Mnistry of the Interior for
consideration. Applicants were acconmpdated in refugee canps and provi ded
with necessities, including food and a stipend, and classes in the Slovak

| anguage if desired. According to data currently avail able, 425 applications
had been received during 1997. O those, 21 had been accepted and

48 rejected; proceedings had been terminated in respect of the others. Over



CCPR/ C/ SR. 1591
page 10

the past four years, according to Mnistry of the Interior statistics,

219 applications had been dism ssed; of those, 186 had been the subject of
appeal to the Mnistry, and 133 of them had been the subject of further appea
to the Suprene Court for review of a mnisterial decision

49, Ms. Chanet resuned the Chair.

50. Ms. LAMPEROVA (Slovakia), referring to question 18, said that the
status of the judiciary was governed by provisions of the Constitution and

ot her enactnents. Judges were elected for a four-year period, and could be
re-elected for the sane period, by Parliament, on the reconmendati on of the
Governnment. The President and Vice-President of the Supreme Court were

i kewi se appointed from anong judges of that Court; their termof office was
five years, with a maxi mum of two successive ternms. Judges could resign and
could al so be inpeached by Parlianent for reasons such as intentional crime or
acts inconpatible with their office. Parlianment could also revoke a judge's
mandat e on health grounds, for at |east one year and if the judge was aged 65
or nore. Such actions were subject to a prior ruling by the appropriate

di sciplinary body. The President and Vice-President of the Suprene Court
could be dismssed by the Mnister of Justice. The State guaranteed the

i ndependence of the judiciary, inter alia by ensuring non-interference in
their work and adequate renuneration. An anendnment to the Courts and Judges
Act, which had entered into force in 1995 was an exanple of noves to enhance
t he denocratic nature of the courts, based on experience of European practice.
A further exanple related to the status of the Councils of Judges, currently
non- aut ononous advi sory bodi es, which was being nodified.

51. Question 19 related to legislation and practice in respect of the right
to protection of privacy. |In that regard, the powers of the police were
prescri bed by Act No. 171/93 and in the Code of Crimnal Procedure. Permtted
action by the police was generally of two types: normal everyday acts such as
checki ng vehicles or preventing entry into hazardous | ocations; and

appr ehensi on because of suspected conmi ssion of a crine or intention to commt
a crine. Paragraph 88 of the Code of Crimnal Procedure governed the

condi tions under which wire tapping could be carried out. Decisions to that
effect nust be in witing, justified and sanctioned by an authority, for
exanpl e, the Procurator in the case of pre-trial proceedings or the presiding
judge of a panel in respect of proceedings already heard. Wre tapping of
conversations between | awers and clients was prohibited.

52. M. CREXA (Slovakia), referring to question 20, said that the conditions
for registration of religious societies were clearly defined by |aw. Act

No. 308/91 dealt with freedom of religion and the status of churches and
eccl esi astical associations; under the Act an association could request
registration if it had at |east 20,000 adherents. However, a number of

soci eties having a considerably smaller menbership, but State-recognized
before the Act had cone into force, were registered

53. Requests nust provide administrative information such as the society's
nane, headquarters address and officials, as well as a statenent acknow edgi ng
respect for national |aws and tol erance of other societies and non-believers.
Docunent ati on was required on the society's status and managenent, incl uding
details of persons authorized to receive stipends and how they were appoi nted



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1591
page 11

and dism ssed. Registration was carried out by the Mnistry of Culture, which
al so | ooked into aspects such as conformty with the law, norality, tolerance
and respect for the rights of others. Registration by the Mnistry was an

adm ni strative act, governed by the adnministrative code in force. The

Suprene Court could be requested to review any refusal of registration
Currently, 15 churches and religious associations were regi stered.

54. Regi stered societies were entitled to certain benefits, such as State
assistance in funding and access to the nedia, schools, hospitals and prisons;
the Slovak authorities did not view as discrimnatory the fact that

non-regi stered societies enjoyed no such benefits.

55. Wth reference to the |last sentence of question 20, Act

No. 282/1993 Coll. on the mtigation of property injustices to churches and
religious societies had been wel coned by a speaker at the Tenth Assenbly of
the World Jewi sh Congress in January 1996, who had said that, although its

i mpl enent ati on had been slow, the Act was a nodel in sone respects. It
stipulated that churches could request, in witing, the restitution of
confiscated | and and other property within 80 days of the date of application
inrelation to confiscations between 1945 and 1990 and, in respect of Jew sh
property, between 1939 and 1990. Cases of failure to restitute could be
brought before a court within 15 nonths. The Act provided, however, that the
property was to be restored in the state it had been in at the tine the Act
had entered into force, there being no provision for financial conpensation

It also provided that restitution of |land could be refused for reasons such as
irrevocabl e conversion, e.g. to a cenetery, or on ecological grounds. It also
covered special cases relating to prem ses currently occupi ed by schools, or
whi ch had becone sites of historic interest. The tine-limt for requests had
been 31 December 1994. Cearly, such a conplex subject was not w thout

probl ems, and the Act could not rectify all injustices, including those
suffered by countless individuals as well as societies; nevertheless, it had
hel ped to alleviate sone.

56. M. JEZOVI CA (Sl ovakia), replying to question 21 on the list of issues
concerning consci entious objection, said that under article 25 (2) of the
Constitution no one could be forced to performmnilitary service if that ran
counter to his conscience or religious belief. Act No. 207 of 1995 now

regul ated the conditions of exercise of that right, and notably the
performance of civilian service in the public interest that was i nposed as an
alternative. Persons who were by profession responsible for weapons or
connected with such responsibility were prevented by |aw from engaging in
civilian service. Conscientious objection nmust be declared in a substanti ated
statenment to be submitted to the military authorities within 30 days of
recei pt of a conscription order or - in the case of reservists liable to
call-up for war ganes - by 31 January of the cal endar year but no sooner than
two years after performng active mlitary service. As determ ned by the
Constitutional Court in a case which he described in sonme detail, the
time-limts nust be respected, and in addition, to be legally valid,
statements must include various personal data as well as substantiation of the
i ncompatibility between mlitary service and the applicant's conscience or
religious belief. Oficial acknow edgenment of an objector’'s statement and
notification of the concomtant duty to performcivilian service were
comunicated in a certificate issued by the mlitary authorities, together




CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1591
page 12

with informati on concerning the rights and obligations associated with
civilian service. The mlitary adm nistrative office also issued brochures to
potential enployers setting out the conditions governing such service.

57. Refusal to approve alternative civilian service could be appeal ed
against to the courts. Revocation of an earlier statenent of objection to
mlitary service was al so possible, subject to certain conditions. The rights
and benefits of persons engaged in civilian service - notably in terms of
wages, food, accommdation and clothing - were the same as those of conscripts
performing mlitary service. The working hours of an objector could not
exceed the legal limts for the type of activity perforned.

58. In 1996, a total of 6,144 persons had been performng civilian service;
anot her 7,810 had been awaiting such service. Altogether in the same
year, 1,736 persons had nmade statenents of objection to nmilitary service

59. Replying to question 22 on the inpact of the new |law requiring

regi stration of NGOs and inposing financial requirements on their
establ i shnent, he observed that while the freedom of association as such was
not considered a subject requiring |l egal regulation, a great deal of

consi deration had been given since 1991 to the need to introduce certain
restrictions, notably with regard to foundations, many of which had property
interests. The |law adopted in 1996 renni ned the subject of considerable
debate. For exanple, the requirenent that a foundation nmust have a capital of
100, 000 Sl ovak koruny, to be raised within a six-month period foll ow ng

regi stration, had been contested, but had al so been shown to conpare quite
favourably with sinmilar requirenents in Gernmany, Denmark and el sewhere.

60. As to the equally controversial requirement of registration by the

adm nistrative section of the Mnistry of the Interior, he pointed out that
the drafters of the |aw had carefully exam ned the situation in other
countries before endorsing that provision, which in any case carried with it a
safeguard in the formof the possibility of judicial review of any mnisteria
deci sion on regul ation. Foundations registered before the enactnment of the
1996 |l aw were required to reapply by 1 Septenber 1997, by which time the

i npact of the new provisions could be nore properly assessed. His del egation
woul d gladly comrunicate the findings to the Commttee for further discussion
if its nmenbers so desired

61. M s. KRASNOHORSKA (Sl ovakia), responding to the request in question 23
for nore information on neasures agai nst sexual exploitation of children and
the situation of children becom ng statel ess, said that Slovakia was deeply
conmitted to the inplenentation of the Declaration of the Rights of the Child,
and had supported the European initiative on children's rights at the nost
recent session of the Conmmi ssion on Human Rights. But while there had

undoubt edly been progress in the protection of children in Slovakia, it nust
be admtted that they continued to suffer abuse and ill-treatnment, including
sexual exploitation involving pornography and prostitution. Official figures
i ndi cated that between 1993 and 1996, four cases (three involving boys and one
a girl) had been recorded. Obviously, the legal protection accorded by the
Penal Code and the Family Act was insufficient. Supplenmentary neasures had
therefore been recently introduced, including the creation of special centres
to deal with juveniles at all levels of the police structure, greater




CCPR/ C/ SR. 1591
page 13

coordination of the activities of State and | ocal authorities and rel evant
institutions, and international cooperation. In addition, sexual exploitation
was the subject of study and research, and many preventive actions had been

| aunched.

62. Act No. 40/1993 on nationality nmade it virtually inpossible for children
in Slovakia to become stateless. Slovak nationality was automatically
accorded to a child with at | east one parent of that nationality, as well as
to Sl ovakian-born children of stateless parents or of foreign parents whose
nationality they did not acquire.

63. The CHAIRMAN invited a final round of comments from menmbers of the
Commi ttee.

64. M. POCAR said that he had one or two outstanding concerns. The

first was to establish the exact status of the Covenant within the
constitutional framework of Slovakia. From paragraphs 7 and 8 of the

report (CCPR/ C/ 81/ Add.9), he understood that when a | aw was decl ared
unconstitutional, it would becone ineffective after six nmonths if the
conpetent authorities, i.e. the Executive or Parlianent, had not brought its
provisions into conformty with the constitutional requirenents. Was he right
in further concluding that nodification of the law in question could result in
its remaining on the statute book? |If that was indeed the case, then it
seemed to himthat the only way of verifying that the nodifications intended
in the ruling of the Constitutional Court had been nmade would be to bring the
matter once again before the Court, which could prove a very |engthy process.
Hi s own preference would certainly be for the automatic and strai ghtforward
del eti on of unconstitutional provisions, so as to avoid tinkering that failed
properly to address the original concern, which nust be to renove or revise

| egi sl ation of the past that was inconpatible with a new and denocratic
Constitution. Further information on both the theoretical and practica
aspects of that matter woul d be wel cone.

65. A further source of puzzlement was the inpression he had gained froma
reading of articles 132 and 125 of the Constitution that internationa

i nstruments had, generally speaking, a standing |ower than donmestic |aw.

Thus, while regulations listed under article 125 (c), nanely “generally

bi ndi ng decrees issued by territorial self-admnistration bodies”, nust, if

i nconmpati bl e, be brought into harmony with international instrunents to which
Sl ovakia was a party, the sane specific provision was not mentioned in
relation to regulations listed under article 125 (b), which included “decrees
i ssued by the Governnent and generally binding | egal regul ations issued by

m nistries and other central bodies of State adm nistration”. That

di screpancy was, in turn, at variance with the provisions of article 11
according to which “international treaties on human rights and basic
liberties ... ratified by the Slovak Republic and prormul gated in a manner
deternmined by | aw [take] precedence over its own | aws”.

66. Turning to the issue of religious freedom he said he found it difficult
to see how a law that required the registration of churches could be
conpatible with that freedom especially when the criterion of nunbers was
added. Registered churches obviously enjoyed a variety of privileges. Did
that not inply discrimnation against churches which failed to nmeet the

requi renents for registration? He further asked whether the financing of

regi stered churches took the form of subsidies or grants for specific
activities (such as education, health services and so on), what percentage of



CCPR/ ¢/ SR. 1591
page 14

the popul ati on were not nenbers of any of the 15 regi stered churches, and
whet her the restitution of church property was accorded only to those that
were registered or to all religious institutions in Slovaki a.

67. On the question of conscientious objection, he noted the confirmation of
the constitutionality of establishing time-linmts for statements of objection
but asked whether future conscripts were actually informed of that provision
Further noting that such statenents nust include, anmong other things, a
denonstration of the inconpatibility between mlitary service and the
signatory's religious belief, he asked whether a denonstration al ong the sane
lines, but on grounds of conscience by a non-believer, would be favourably
consi dered. What, indeed, were the grounds for refusing statenments of
objection? Lastly, what justifications were there for differences in the
length of mlitary and civilian service, which, unless there were good
reasons, could be seen as punitive.

68. Ms. GAITAN DE POVBO wel coned the informative report and its
presentation of activities related to the installation of a new denpcratic
order, and the identification of problens encountered in that connection. It
was useful for the Comrittee to |l earn about the status of the Covenant and of
its inplenmentation in all parts of society in all countries.

69. She wel coned the confirmation of Slovakia' s abandonment of the death
penalty and the withdrawal of its reservation concerning article 20 of the

Eur opean Convention agai nst Torture. She further noted the abandonnent of any
statute of limtation concerning prosecution for war crinmes; she would wel cone
further information on the strengthening of legislation in that respect as
wel | as coments on the elinmnation of the notion of inpunity.

70. M. KLEIN associated hinself with M. Pocar's renmarks concerning the
status of the Covenant in the constitutional and | egal framework of Slovakia.
Referring to article 11 of the Constitution, he inquired howit was to be
determi ned that international treaties on human rights and basic |iberties
actually secured “a greater extent of constitutional rights and |iberties”
than national |aws. Wuld such a determ nation be nade globally, or on a
case- by-case basis?

71. Concerning the independence of the judiciary, he concurred with the view
that junior judges el ected or appointed upon |eaving | aw school would
obviously | ack experience, and should be at first engaged on a probationary
basis. In that connection, it would be useful if the judiciary itself were
accorded a greater say in the matter of extending or renewi ng appoi ntnments for
limted periods or indefinitely after the probationary stage, a matter which
ought not to be left to the Executive and Parliament.

72. M. KRETZMER said that he shared the previous speaker's concern about
various aspects of the tenporary appointnment of judges, and would al so wel conme
i nformati on concerning their renuneration. He understood that the Slovak
Associ ati on of Judges had put forward sonme suggestions with regard to

| egi slation on matters concerning the judiciary, and inquired about the status
of those suggestions.

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




